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FIRST ~Y.LAWS 

The by-laws "which had been legally prepared" were con­
firmed at a special meeting held on 14th December 1883 and 
it , was ordered "That two copies be written out-one' to be' sent 
..to the Colonial Secretary-the other to be filed with the Board's 
p~pers." 

BATHING FACILITIES 

An attempt was made by certain parties in 1884 to obtain 
the Lyttelton Harbour Board's consent to. 'erect bathing sheds 
near Cave Rock. The Board refused the request and was thanked 
by the To.wn Board for so doing, at the same time it asked the 
Harbour Board for the lease at a pepper-corn rental of Cave 
Rock, the foreshore surrounding same and the whole of the 
foreshore running eastward from the landing-stage to White­
wash Head. 

, :r'he" Town Board, at the same meeting, expressed the 
opmIOn that the best place for a bathing site was between the 
east end of the Esplanade and Whitewash Head" later the 
site of Bell's Baths, and now Reserve 4002. ' 

The opinion then expressed, namely, that the area would be 
~etter un.der the control of the local authority in whose district 
It was SItuate, was later cQnfirmed. Section 34 o.f "The Re­
serves and Other Lands Disposal and Enabling Public Bodies 
Empowering Act of 1901" definitely vesting in the council eleven 
acres .of foreshore from a point nearly opposite "Ha~remai" 
Boardmg-house, to its junction with Heberden Avenue as 
Reserve 3549. 

Further powers over this area, and the unformed PQrtio.n of 
the road between the Esplanade as at present laid out and the 
Reserve, were given to the Counci.! by "The Sumner Bor~ugh Em­
powering Act of 1936" which provided that the Council could 
close a specified area of t~e unformed portio.nof the Esplanade, 
le~se same, and. the portIOn of the Reserve lying between the 
saId area and hIgh water mark, and erect buildings thereon. 

Perhaps some day "when the war-drums beat no. longer, 
and t~e battle flags are furled," up-to-date bathing facilities and 
paddlmg pools may be erected on the area described herein. 

Following this, Section 108 of the Empo.wering Act of 1919, 
vested Cave Rock and a marginal area containing in all three 
roods 19 perches, being part of Reserve No. 2507, in the Council. 

The Reserves and Other Land Disposal and Public Bodies 
Empowering Act of 1915 gave authority to the Council to. pur­
chase the Sailing Club's Jetty and surrQundings, the Pier at 
Sumner, and the site of the old (Bell's) baths from the Lyttel­
to.n Harbour Bo.ard at a prke to be assessed. The amount of the 
purchase mo.ney was ultimately fixed at £1818, and a Io.an was 
arranged with the Harbour Board for this amount. The term o.f 
the loan expired in 1936, when the balance then owing £1200 
was renewed at 3~ per cent with a Sinking Fund at the same 
rate which under normal conditions should be sufficient to. pay 
o.ff the indebtedness, on the 1st January, 1957. The Act also pro~-
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vided in respect of these pro.perties that the qo.uncil. sho.uld 
have the contro.l and management of SaIne, and mIght raIse ,and 
expend -monies in the same manner as in the case of authorIs'ed 

works. . 23 f "Th L' 1 Scarborough Tea Rooms Property. SectIOn 0. e oca 
Legislatio.n Act 1934," gave the Lyttelton Harbour ~oard power 
to. sell this pro.P'erty co.ntaining o.ne rood, twentY-~lght perch~s, 
being Reserve 4344 to. the Sumner Borough CouncIl. The. prIce 
agreed upon was £380 payable. in instalments over a perIQd of 
20 years with interest o.n unpaId balances at the rate. o.f 3~ per 
cent per' annum. The Co.uncil to. enter into posses,sl~n on 1st 
April, 1935. The sale was made subject to an eXlstmg lease 
of fourteen years dating from the 1st March, 1928. The lease 
will therefore expire on 28th February,. 1942. 

DEDICATION OF ROADS AND SrJ'REETS .-
JOHNSTONE TOWNSHIP 

The Deed Po.ll dated 15th May, 1873, r~cites, : "That all 
roads in Johnstone Township dedicated by him ar.e 'coloured 
yello.w o.n plan. St. Leonar~'s Sq~are is 506 x 502 lmks exclu­
sive of ro.ads. The square Itself IS coloure~ blue. 

The Wakefield Township ro.ads were dedIcated by Deed Poll 
of 13th May. 1873. Ano.ther document dated 17th June, 1874, 
contained further references. to. Dryd~n Str~et. The Reserve 
between the two townships IS three lmks :WIde. , 

When the Town District was constituted both to.wnShIPS 
Io.st their separate identity and became part o.f the Town Board's 
area. As a result of thi,s, it was decided in 1884 to connect the 
streets between the two. districts, and the owners of the sec­
tio.ns co.ncerned, were advised accordingly. 

ST. LEONARD'S SQUARE 
Like the Ho.n. Mr Parry, the Commissioners of those ,days 

had evidently an appreciation of the, necessity for recreatIOnal 
facilities and physical welfare, for m the m~,nutes, dated ~9th 
May and 3rd June, 1885, it is stated "~hat all mom~s r~celved 
for the sale of clay be set aside for laymg out and fencmg the 
Square, as a recreation gr~und and gardens, and that Mr J. 
Hines' tender o.f £4 for clearmg the Square be accepte~l. . 

When o.ne IQoks back over the eight years,. dunng w~Ich 
perio.d the Town Bo.ard functio.ned, and reads o.f lt~ ll;ccQmphsh­
ments, one must in all sincerity express apprecIatIOn. of the 
earnest and conscientious endeavo.urs and su~cess attendmg the 
effo.rts of the members whom I have earlIer refened to as' 
Pio.neers of Progress. For example-apart frQm what has 
already been mentioned, and ordinary routine work-levels were 
taken datum stones fixed, Hardwicke, Stoke, Bury, Eusto.n, 
Head' and o.ther streets! were built up, with .clay, formed and 
metalled; a quarry and pound site were 'estabhshed; a tram'Yay, 
and even a railway were discussed. Much tho.u~ht was gIven 
to., and quite a lot of mo.ney spent Qn the pro.vIsIon of a water 
supply. Paths were constructed, and the dramage of the area 
commenced. 
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